Public Document Pack

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

6.00 oM Tuesday Town Hall,
HOP 8 February 2022 Main Road, Romford
Members 8: Quorum 4
COUNCILLORS:
Conservative Group Residents’ Group Upminster & Cranham
4) (2) Residents’ Group (1)
Christine Vickery (Vice-Chair) Paul Middleton Christopher Wilkins
John Crowder
Sally Miller
Michael White
Independent Residents’ North Havering Residents
Group Group (1)
(1)
David Durant Brian Eagling (Chairman)

For information about the meeting please contact:
Taiwo Adeoye - 01708 4330979
taiwo.adeoye@onesource.co.uk




Highways Advisory Committee, 8 February 2022

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London
Borough of Havering

Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet,
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law.

Reporting means:-

¢ filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting;

e using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at
a meeting as it takes place or later; or

e reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the
person is not present.

Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted.

Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from
which to be able to report effectively.

Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and
walking around could distract from the business in hand.



Highways Advisory Committee, 8 February 2022

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART — QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

What matters are being discussed?

A4

D
P Does the business relate to or is it likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest. These will include the
interests of a spouse or civil partner (and co-habitees):
| = any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that they carry on for profit or gain;
+ any sponsorship that they receive including contributions to their expenses as a councillor; or the
councillor's election expenses from a Trade Union;
+ any land licence or tenancy they have in Havering
= any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and them;
« any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and any organisation with land in Havering
in they are a partner, a paid Director, or have a relevant interest in its shares and securities;
« any organisation which has land or a place of business in Havering and in which they have a relevant interest in its
shares or its securities.
N
o YES Declare Interest and Leave
P Might a decision in relation to that business be reasonably be regarded as affecting (to a greater extent than
E the majority of other Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of ward affected by the decision)
R * Your well-being or financial position; or
S * The well-being or financial position of:
o
N o A member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association; or
A - Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are
a partner, or any company of which they are directors;
L - Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;
1
N o Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to
T which you are appointed or nominated by your Authority; or
E o Any body exercising functions of a public nature, directed to charitable purposes or whose
R principal includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a
E member or in a position of general control or management?
S
T S
I N
You must disclose the fo)
existence and nature of your
personal interests
P
E
c N/
u Would a member of the public, with . )
N knowledge of the relevant facts, You can participate in the
I reasonably regard your personal meeting and vote (or
interest to be so significant that it is NO remain in the room if not a
A likely to prejudice your member of the meeting)
R Y
Y E
S
] - Does the matter affect your financial position or the financial position of any person or body
N through whom you have a personal interest?
- Does the matter relate to an approval, consent, licence, permission or registration that affects
T you or any person or body with which you have a personal interest? NO
E - Does the matter not fall within one of the exempt categories of decisions?
R Y
E E
S s
T
Speak to Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting to avoid allegations of
corruption or bias




Highways Advisory Committee, 8 February 2022

AGENDA ITEMS
1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other
events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.

The Chairman will also announce the following:

The Committee is reminded that the design work undertaken by Staff falls under the
requirements of the Construction (Design & Management) Regulations 2015. Those
Staff undertaking design work are appropriately trained, experienced and qualified to
do so and can demonstrate competence under the Regulations. They also have
specific legal duties associated with their work.

For the purposes of the Regulations, a Designer can include an organisation or
individual that prepares or modifies a design for any part of a construction project,
including the design of temporary works, or arranges or instructs someone else to do
it.

While the Committee is of course free to make suggestions for Staff to review, it

should not make design decisions as this would mean that the Committee takes on
part or all of the Designer's responsibilities under the Regulations.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS
(if any) - receive.

3 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this
point of the meeting.

Members may still disclose any interest in an item at any time prior to the
consideration of the matter.

4 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on
11 January 2022, and to authorise the Chairman to sign them.

5 ST HELENS COURT PARKING AND HOUSING ENFORCEMENT SCHEME
OBJECTIONS (Pages 5 - 16)

Report attached.



Highways Advisory Committee, 8 February 2022

6 STANLEY CLOSE, ROMFORD - PERMIT PARKING MEASURES
IMPLEMENTATION REQUEST (Pages 17 - 24)

Report attached.
7 GRASS VERGES - RECOMMENDATIONS (Pages 25 - 64)

Report attached.

Zena Smith
Democratic and Election Services Manager



This page is intentionally left blank



Public Document Pack Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE
VIRTUAL MEETING
11 January 2022 (7.00 - 8.15 pm)
Present:
COUNCILLORS

Conservative Group Christine Vickery (Vice-Chair), John Crowder,
Robert Benham and Judith Holt

Residents’ Group Paul Middleton

Upminster & Cranham Christopher Wilkins
Havering Residents’

Group

Independent Residents  David Durant

Group

North Havering Brian Eagling (Chairman)

Residents Group

Apologies were received for the absence of Councillors Sally Miller and Michael
White.

+ Councillor Robert Benham substituted for Councillor Michael White while Councillor
Judith Holt substituted for Councillor Sally Miller.

There was a member of the public present at the meeting.
The Chairman reminded Members of the action to be taken in an emergency.

25 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
There were no disclosures of interest.
26 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2021 were agreed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

Page 1



Highways Advisory Committee, 11 January

2022

27 SCHOOL STREETS (SS) PHASE 1 - REQUEST TO CONVERT THE
SCHEME FROM EXPERIMENTAL TO PERMANENT

The report before the Committee sought recommendations to convert the
School Streets (SS) Phase 1 scheme from experimental to permanent.

In accordance with the public speaking arrangements the Committee was
addressed by a local resident.

The Committee considered the report and following a debate RESOLVED to
recommend to the Cabinet Member for Public Realm in consultation with the
Leader of the Council that:

o the experimental school street schemes for Branfil Primary
School, Hylands Primary School and Squirrels Heath Infant &
Junior Schools proceed to formal advertisement and making of
the permanent traffic order; as shown on the drawings in the
report and detailed in the following table:

Schem school Roads Included in the Times of Times of
e Ref Name ‘Pedestrian and Cycle operation operation
No. only’ zone (School Street) (AM) (PM)
Branfil - Southview Drive 8.00 - 9.30am 2 —3:30pm
S1 Primary - Cedar Drive
School
Hylands - Benjamin Close 8 — 9:30am 2.30 - 4.00pm
S92 Primary
School
Squirrels - Sailsbury Rd 8:00-9.3am 2:30—- 4pm
33 Heath Ir]fant
& Junior
Schools

o Approve the officer's recommendations to overrule the small
number of objections received during the experimental order
statutory consultation period and agree that officers write to
the objectors where possible and explain why their objections
have been overruled.

The voting to recommend the scheme was passed by 6 votes to 2
abstentions. Councillor Durant and Middleton abstained from the vote.

Page 2

Chairman




Highways Advisory Committee, 11 January
2022

Page 3




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda Iltem 5

HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

8t February 2022

Subject Heading:

Lead Member:

Report Author and contact details:

Policy context:

Financial Summary:

St Helens Court Parking and Housing
Enforcement Scheme. Objection Report.

Councillor Osman Dervish & Councillor
Joshua Chapman

Omar Tingling
omar.tingling@havering.gov.uk
Senior Engineer

Highways and Parking Strategy December
2018

The estimated cost of implementation is
£0.022m and will be met from cost code C30010

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives

Communities making Havering
Places making Havering

Opportunities making Havering
Connections making Havering

[X]
[X]
[X]
[X]

SUMMARY

e Rainham & Wennington Ward:

Following on from approval to commence with the formal advertising of ‘H1’ Controlled Parking Zone
(CP2) for both resident permit holders only and shared use paid for parking / resident permit holders
only bays, which would be operational on Monday to Saturday between 08:00 hours and 18:30
hours, on housing land in St Helens Court Rainham officers have received two responses to the

scheme.

This report is therefore being presented to the Highways Advisory Committee (HAC) to:

a) consider the officers recommendations and overrule the objections; and

b) advise the Cabinet Members for Environment and Housing to proceed with the introduction
of ‘H1’ Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) for both resident permit holders only and shared use
paid for parking / resident permit holders only bays operational on Monday to Saturday
between 08:00 hours and 18:30 hours, on housing land in St Helens Court Rainham.

Page 5


mailto:omar.tingling@havering.gov.uk

HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That the Highways Advisory Committee having considered this report recommends to the
Cabinet Members for Environment and Housing in consultation with the Leader of the Council

to:

a)

b)

agree the recommendations made to overrule the objections received during the
statutory consultation on the introduction of a residents parking scheme on housing
land in St Helens Court Rainham.

commence with the implementation of a residents parking scheme which would see
the introduction of ‘H1’ Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) for ‘for both resident permit
holders only and shared use paid for parking / resident permit holders only bays
operational on Monday to Saturday between 08:00 hours and 18:30 hours, on housing
land in St Helens Court Rainham; as shown on the plan in Appendix A.

2. That the Highways Advisory Committee having considered this report recommends to the
Cabinet Members for Environment and Housing in consultation with the Leader of the
Council notes:

a)

b)

d)

that the estimated cost of the fully implemented proposals, including all physical
measures and advertising costs is £0.022m and will be met from the cost code
C30010.

that due to budget constraints Housing officers have confirmed the proposed
installation of a pay & display machine with a cashless payment option at the cost of
£3,500 would not a viable option. This would mean that if approved:

I.  Highways would need to make provision for a machine to be installed on
Housing land from their Highways Improvement Programme (HIP) budget; and

II.  Highways would retain the revenue made from this machine up to the value of
£3,500 and thereafter all revenue from this machine will be split with housing.
However, this would also mean that Highways would be responsible for any
maintenance costs.

If agreed the land will remain as Housing land, with a traffic management order in place
for enforcement purposes. The responsibility of maintenance would be shared
between Housing and Parking which would be detailed in a Service Level Agreement
(SLA).

if agreed implementation of the scheme would not be progressed until the SLA
between the Housing Authority and Highways Authority has been agreed.

Page 6



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8™ February 2022

REPORT DETAIL

1.0 Background

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

2.1

Following on from the proposal to review the parking on Housing land in St Helens Court
Rainham, which would see the introduction of ‘H1’ Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) for both
resident permit holders only and shared use paid for parking / resident permit holders only
bays operational on Monday to Saturday between 08:00 hours and 18:30 hours. The
Highways Advisory Committee meeting on 10" August 2021 agreed for officers to undertake
a statutory consultation on phase 2 of the scheme.

The results of the Phase 1 consultation, which was undertaken in January 2021 raised
concerns in relation to the capacity of parking in St Helens Court and it was agreed that the
viability of demolishing 2 garage sites on St Helens Court would be investigated as part of
phase 2 with the view to converting these spaces in to further resident permit holder only
parking bays.

Housing have undertaken a consultation with the lease holders and as a result of the
consultation and confirmation of cost, the Lead Member for Environment has agreed to
progress with the demolition of the two garage sites for the purpose of introducing the parking
bays. It has been confirmed by Housing officers that existing garage residents have been
offered an alternative garage provision elsewhere.

Due to budget allocations and time constraints it has been agreed the implementation of
these works would need to take place before the end of the 2021/22 financial year.

Housing have undertaken a consultation with the lease holders and as a result of the
consultation and confirmation of cost, the Lead Member for Housing agreed to progress with
the demolition of the 2 garage sites.

The garages were removed in October 2021 and the ground was left in a condition which is
now fit for parking.

A Statutory Consultation on the resident permit holders only parking in the (demolished)
garage area was undertaken between26™ November 2021 to 17" December 2021.

Adverts were placed in the Romford Recorder and London Gazette on 26" November 2021
inviting comments on the scheme. 176 letters were distributed to St Helen’s Court and the
surrounding area, along with notices which were erected on lamp columns in the area
advising people of the consultation. Please see Appendix B.

Objections to the proposals:

At the close of consultation the council received 2 responses to phase 2 of the scheme which
included objections and these along with the officers responses are detailed in a) and b) below:

2.1.1 Objection 1
I. l'am writing in regard to the proposed introduction of a residents parking scheme at

St Helens Court.  am a Ieas\:ﬁolder ?d have lived at St Helens Court for nearly 15
years. | have a few points | AYfke'to make.



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8™ February 2022

VI.

The parking issue at St Helens has always been a lack of parking spaces for
residents. There are 56 flats and many of these own 2 vehicles. Whilst the creation
of some new spaces will help, the current plan does not go far enough. There is
parking for about 40 cars on the current plan...this does not even provide for 1
vehicle per household, which should surely be the bare minimum. Can the council
create more spaces for residents before lumbering us with costly permits which
don't guarantee a parking space?

| object to the sharing of resident's spaces with local businesses at the entrance to
St Helens Court. These businesses have plenty of parking along Upminster Road
South and in the Pay and Display car park on Viking Way (at the back of Tesco car
park) This car park is very badly signed....there is nothing to say that it is a car park
for the village shops and it is always empty. Why do the shops need to share our
parking spaces when we haven't even got one space per flat? The shops have
perfectly adequate and available parking on Viking Way, they don't need any more
- the Viking Way car park with short term fees is always empty.

The letter of 24/11 does not specify how long visitor permits will be valid for. As you
have said, the resident permits will not be transferrable between vehicles. If | have
a courtesy car and am forced to use visitor permits for it, | would like to make sure
that the visitor permit lasts for the whole day so that | can go to work by public
transport and not get fined because the visitor permit has run out in my absence.
This also applies to our visitors if we take them out on day trips etc.

Please do not remove the car park gates once the permit scheme is introduced.
They will give us extra protection against people selling books of visitor permits to
commuters etc.

Will there be a grace period? | have had to self isolate on a number occasions during
the pandemic and relied on friends to deliver essentials. In the future, would they
have to use a visitor permit when stopping for 5/10 minutes? That would be very
unfair in these uncertain times and | know it would affect many elderly residents too.
Thank you for considering my concerns.

2.1.2 Officers response to objection 1

Highways has been approached by Housing to implement controls in St Helens
Court to manage the erroneous parking and where possible provide additional bays
for use by residents of the estate. The implementation of this scheme would achieve
this and the parking capacity would increase from approximately 30 to 40 parking
spaces for the 56 properties.

Whilst it is accepted the parking space provision does not equate to 1 vehicle per
household, this is not something that Highways could achieve within the constraints
of the site whilst ensuring accessibility for both emergency services and refuse.

Unfortunately the implementation of parking controls does not guarantee a space
but the cost of a permit in Havering is one of the lowest in London and there is no
limit on the number that can be purchased.

Most of the bays within St. Helens Court would provide parking for residents of the
estate only. However, it wa reed with Housing to propose shared use resident
permit holder and paid for pm% s on the approach road to the estate only, to



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8™ February 2022

\%

enable visitors to or residents of St Helens Court to park using another means as
opposed to visitor permits, which is usually at the expense of the resident. This
would mean that in addition to visitors to residents’ drivers making deliveries or
collections would also be able to park in relatively close proximity to the property
they are going to.

The scheme would however, prioritise residents parking in the zone over non-estate
users and assures enforcement of the area can be undertaken; maintain access for
the emergency services and refuse collection vehicles; and enable enforcement
against abandoned or disused vehicles left within the zone.

Details of the council’s tariffs are available on the website but | have included the
information below for ease of reference:

Controlled Parking Zones:

Resident’s parking permit (per annum)

1st Permit per household £35.00
2nd Permit per household £60.00
3rd Permit per household £85.00
Resident’s visitor permits (book of 10) £13.00
Resident’s All Day visitor permits (book of 10) £39.00
Resident’s Hourly visitor permits (book of 10) £10.00

Courtesy cars would be managed through the current MIPermit portal system on
the council’s website and the information provided by the applicant should enable
such transfers to be actioned seamlessly.

Following on from discussions with Housing it was agreed that as part of the
proposals the gates would be removed. This is due to the fact that if controls are
implemented the enforcement of them would need to adhere to current Highway
legislation which does not permit the council to reserve parts of the ‘highway’ for
specific users. Retaining the gates would mean that when locked we would
effectively be restricting access to other user groups outside of the operational hours
of the zone which is not permitted.

The introduction of a residential parking scheme prioritises the residents of the zone
over non-estate users. It also assures that there is enforcement of the area which
maintains access for the emergency services and refuse collection vehicles. It
would also mean that any abandoned or disused vehicles left within the zone could
be enforced against.

If approved there is normally a week ‘grace period’ where warning notices are issued
before enforcement begins. However, there would not be a grace period after that
time for visitors. They would either need to pay for parking or use a visitor permit.

2.1.3 Objection 2:

My wife and | object to the plan to charge residents of St Helens Court to park in the
estate's parking spaces. We are on a low income and this will only add to our
increasing living costs. We would prefer we stuck with the current barrier system
which works perfectly. Thank%ou for §our time and for giving us the chance to make
this objection. age



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8™ February 2022

2.1

4.1

2.1.4 Officers response to objection 2

Highways has been approached by Housing to implement controls in St Helens
Court to manage the erroneous parking and where possible provide additional bays
for use by residents of the estate.

The scheme would however, prioritise residents parking in the zone over non-estate
users and assures enforcement of the area can be undertaken; maintain access for
the emergency services and refuse collection vehicles; and enable enforcement
against abandoned or disused vehicles left within the zone.

However, cabinet approval does mean that to implement these types of schemes
there is a charge which has been set for the management of parking and whilst we
appreciate the concerns raised in relation to parking permit costs, the cost of a
permit in Havering is one of the lowest in London and there is no limit on the number
that can be purchased.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Highways Advisory Committee having considered this report
recommends to the Cabinet Members for Environment and Housing in consultation with the
Leader of the Council to:

a) Overrule the above objections as it is considered the benefits to residents far outweigh
the comments received. The scheme would:

b)

I.  prioritise residents parking in the zone over non-estate users and assures
enforcement of the area can be undertaken;

II.  maintain access for the emergency services and refuse collection vehicles;
and

lll.  enable enforcement against abandoned or disused vehicles left within the
zone

agree to progress with the introduction of a residential parking scheme which would
see the introduction of ‘H1’ Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) for ‘for both resident
permit holders only and shared use paid for parking / resident permit holders only
bays operational on Monday to Saturday between 08:00 hours and 18:30 hours, on
housing land in St Helens Court Rainham which would not be implemented until a
Service Level Agreement (SLA) is in place.

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

This report is asking HAC to recommend to the Cabinet Member the formal advertisement of
the above scheme.

Page 10



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8™ February 2022

4.2 Should all proposals be implemented, the estimated cost of implementation is £0.022m which

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

7.1

included advertising costs and implementing the proposals as described above and shown
on the attached plans will be met from cost code C30010. It should be noted that subject to
the recommendations from the committee a final decision would then be made by the Lead
Members of Housing and Environment — as regards actual implementation and scheme
detail. Therefore final costs are subject to change.

This is a standard project for Environment and there is no expectation that the works cannot
be contained within the cost estimate. There is an element of contingency built into the
financial estimate. In the unlikely event of overspend, the balance would need to be contained
within the overall Environment budget.

Legal Implications and risks:

The Council's power to make an order to introduce parking controls is contained in section 6
and 45 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (“RTRA 1984”) for land considered ‘on-street’
and sections 32 and 35 RTRA 1984 for land considered ‘off-street’. Orders under Section 6
can be made to control or regulate vehicular or other traffic.

Section 45 RTRA 1984 allows Orders to designate paying parking places. In making such an
Order consideration must be given to the interests of traffic, and also the interests of owners
and occupiers of adjoining properties, and in particular, the need for maintaining free
movement of traffic, the need for maintaining reasonable access to premises and the extent
to which off-street parking is available in the neighbourhood.

Before an Order is made, the Council should ensure that the statutory procedures set out in
the Local Authorities Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England & Wales) Regulations 1996 (Sl
1996/2489) are complied with. The Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions
(TSRGD) 2016 govern road traffic signs and road markings.

Section 122 RTRA 1984 imposes a general duty on local authorities when exercising
functions under the RTRA. It provides, insofar as is material, to secure the expeditious,
convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the
provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway. This statutory
duty must be balanced with any concerns received over the implementation of the proposals.

In considering any responses received during consultation, the Council must ensure that full
consideration of all representations is given including those which do not accord with the
officer's recommendation. The Council must be satisfied that any objections to the proposals
were taken into account.

Human Resources implications and risks:

The implementation and enforcement of the scheme can be undertaken within the current
staffing levels. Given the Coronavirus outbreak, the paramount consideration of the Council
is the health and wellbeing of Members and officers.

Equalities implications and risks:

The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires
the Council, when exercising its functions, to have due regard to:

() the need to eliminate discriminatjQn, hargssment, victimisation and any other conduct
that is prohibited by or under the @Qﬁ( t 2010;



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8™ February 2022

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

8.2

(i) the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share protected
characteristics and those who do not, and;

(ii) foster good relations between those who have protected characteristics and those who
do not.

Note: ‘Protected characteristics’ are: age, sex, race, disability, sexual orientation, marriage
and civil partnerships, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity and gender reassignment.

The Council is committed to all of the above in the provision, procurement and commissioning
of its services, and the employment of its workforce. In addition, the Council is also committed
to improving the quality of life and wellbeing for all Havering residents in respect of socio-
economics and health determinants.

The proposals provide measures to improve safety and accessibility for all road users.

The proposals included in the report have been informally consulted on and all residents who
were perceived to be affected by the review were sent letters and questionnaires.

There will be some physical and visual impact from the required signing and lining works.
Where infrastructure is provided or substantially upgraded, reasonable adjustments should
be made to improve access for disabled, which will assist the Council in meeting its duties
under the Equality Act 2010.

Public Health implications and risks:

The introduction of the controlled parking zone will support managing parking demand in the
area. In turn this is likely to result in improved levels of safe parking in the area which will
improve visibility for road users. The introduction of permit will help make the street more
attractive by reducing the dominance of parked are on a street and thus allowing space for
trees, walking or cycling.

The parking permits provide priority access to residents which will make it easier for residents
to park nearer their home. The parking permits will help reduce traffic and pollution by
discouraging vehicles from driving as there could be a lack of parking.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Highways Advisory Committee Report 10" August 2021

Page 12



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8™ February 2022

Appendix A — Phase 2 of St. Helens Court Parking Proposals.
Plan showing existing garage sites that have been demolished where ‘resident permit

holders only’ parking bays are proposed.

Qﬁ" Existing Garage Areas io become
- _ 'Resident Permit Holders Only
Parking Bays, Operational
Mon-Sat, 3am - 6-30pm
vars Court
SN Football Pitch
@ <
o ®
jall < S
m@
c OC,
[ ,}}
?:p A
ry
Play Area
I:_Q .
22"
5 T PURPEE PURFIEE EPELAT

%Haii?il:lnq T-HELENS 0T -FHCE? E i i R
—-""'"'___%_"_';_—:::-- POTEATIAL-CARAGE-CEVCLITIEN - e (ERITRT S
r-m-l—l—l-—l-“_ ETMAE O AL S :’:.‘;:W'r‘b |.:\rﬂ it | spocr [ E:"‘ i Tt e

Page 13



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8™ February 2022

Appendix B — Phase 2 of St. Helens Court Parking Proposals - consultation letter.

Highways, Traffic and Parking
London Borough of Havering
. Town Hall,
Havering
Romford RM1 3BB

LONDON BOROUGH

Please call: Schemes

IMPORTANT PARKING CONSULTATION ENCLOSED | €lephone: 01708 432373

Email: schemes@havering.gov.uk

The Resident/Occupier
Date: 24" November 2021

Dear Sir/ Madam

St Helens Court - Proposed Introduction of Residents Parking
Scheme

Further to our recent consultation of residents and businesses in St Helens Court, on a proposal to introduce
a ‘residents parking scheme’ to deter long term, non-residential parking and prioritise parking on St Helens
Court for its residents. We are now in a position to formally consult residents and businesses of the area on
the full extent of the area available. Results of the previous consultation can be found at
https://democracy.havering.gov.uk/documents/s50145/St%20Helens%20Court%20HAC%20report%20-
FINAL%2012-04.pdf.

This consultation is in relation to the area that will become available when the garages are removed. The
previous consultation area can be seen in appendix A. The additional parking areas becoming available are
shown in Appendix B in the key as New Proposed residents bay Mon-Sat 8.30am — 6.30pm.

The scheme would be the first residents parking scheme to be introduced at one of the Havering housing
estates and if successful will be considered at further locations. This proposal has been designed to resolve
years of issues and complaints raised in regards to parking at St Helens Court and also includes
complimentary measures such as waiting/loading restrictions and a short stay parking facility.

Full details of the proposals, including relevant traffic management orders, are available for inspection for a
period of 21 days at www.haveringtraffweb.co.uk. A plan of the proposal is also enclosed within this letter.

Should you wish to formally comment on the proposal, all comments should be sent in writing to the
Highways, Traffic and Parking Group Manager, Havering Town Hall, Main Road, Romford RM1 3BB or by
email to schemes@havering.gov.uk and to be received by 17" December 2021. All objections must state
the grounds on which they are made.

Please note that officers are unable to answer individual points raised at this stage. However, your comments
will be noted and will be taken into consideration when the final report is presented to us (the Lead Member
for Environment and Lead Member for Housing) and any issues will be addressed at that time. All comments
received are open to public inspection. Page 14


http://www.haveringtraffweb.co.uk/
mailto:schemes@havering.gov.uk
mailto:schemes@havering.gov.uk

HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8™ February 2022

Yours faithfully

g@/&/\;/ b Lypnan

Councillor Osman Dervish Councillor Joshua Chapman
Lead Member for Environment Lead Member for Housing

Further Information

The Proposal

Hours of operation of the parking zone to operate as per the streets surrounding St Helens Court, Monday
— Saturday 08:00 to 18:30.

Double yellow lines and loading restrictions are proposed to ensure the road network around the estate
is kept clear so refuse and emergency service vehicles can safely access the estate at all times. Double
yellow lines also mean loading and unloading can take place where it is safe to do so, but will also mean
these areas cannot be used for parking, especially in front of the garages and the entrances to each block

Dedicated disabled bays for blue badge holders, it should be noted any blue badge holder can use these
parking spaces, even those who do not live on or are visiting the estate

Blue Badge holders will also be able to park in the permit holder parking places, whilst displaying their Blue
Badge, whether or not they live on or are visiting the estate, this is in line with current parking policy across
Havering.

Shared use bays (resident permit holders and pay & display) have been proposed as part of the scheme
design to support the local shops nearby St Helens Court which will provide both resident and paid-for
parking.

Permits

To obtain a permit, proof of residency and proof the vehicle is registered (or kept if a company or lease
vehicle) at an address at St Helens Court would be required. Only residents living in St Helens Court will be
eligible for a permit.

Permits and visitor permits are to be displayed in the vehicle and can be obtained through the Council’s
website

If you are a Blue Badge holder you will not need to purchase a permit for your vehicle, but you will need to
display your blue badge whilst parked in a permit parking place

The current costs for financial year 2020/21 for resident permits are:

first permit to an address is £35

second permit to an address is £60

any further permit issued to an address are £85
Motorcycles — No charge

One book of 10 visitor permits is £13

Each vehicle needs its own permit and unfortunately, they're not transferable to another vehicle. Permit
Charges are reviewed on an annual basis.

To find your data rights, please see the link below for all details:
https://www.havering.gov.uk/info/20044/council qgtéggédqlipendinqllwldata protection/1



https://www.havering.gov.uk/info/20044/council_data_and_spending/139/data_protection/1

Appendix C — Phase 1 of St Helens Court Parking Proposals

HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8™ February 2022

LEGEND

=2 Proposed dhamd use Day Mon - Sat Sam -
630pm §esident permit holden or pay and
dsplay max sty | hrno eum win 2 hes)

Proposed raident pemg haders oty
b Mon - Sat Bam - 6 30pm

I Froposed deatied bay
I Proposed motc e bay
Froposed no watng af any Sme

— PrOpOSO NG WEING & ary Sme
and o loadng & any time

CRRGINAL 1S3
Cedonpace

¥ T ET ET
[ R I R T R
e T R
e

PROJECT
CENTRE

Page 16

et 2 Heltard Yo
B\, & Lendon
WO aHD
Al‘. o T 0330 o080 853
% 7

E)

-
0008 17250401 _ .

g St
FOR INFORMATION
E£1Sub Sta ..”-i 1% Iocram | e _‘.HB

O#fice Regintered i Englamil No. 02625312 | Unit 2 Hodford Yard Lendan. WOIX 6HD | www projmctoertie co ak

S




Agenda Iltem 6
HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

February 2022

Subject Heading: Stanley Close, Romford - (Permit
Parking Measures) - Request to
implement

CMT Lead: Councillor Osman Dervish

Report Author and contact details: Diane Bourne

Schemes Manager — Traffic & Parking
Schemes@havering.gov.uk

Policy context: Havering Local Implementation Plan
2018/19 Delivery Plan

Financial Summary: The estimated cost of implementation is
£0.002m this will be met from the
A26910 Scheme Budget

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives

Communities making Havering [X]

Places making Havering [X]

Opportunities making Havering [X]

Connections making Havering X]
SUMMARY

Romford Town Ward:

Following on from concerns raised in relation to erroneous parking from non-residents in Stanley
Close it was agreed to undertake consultations on parking proposals, with the formal
consultation being undertaken in May 2021 and this report seeks approval to the officer
recommendations outlined below.

Page 17


mailto:Schemes@havering.gov.uk

HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT — FEBRUARY 2022

1.0

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

. That the Highways Advisory Committee having considered this report and the

representations made during the course of consultation, recommends to the Cabinet
Member for Environment in consultation with the Leader of the Council to:

agree that the proposals to introduce a residents permit parking area ‘Permit Parking Past
this point’ (operational Monday to Friday 8am to 10am inclusive) in Stanley Close (as
shown on the plan in Appendix A) proceeds to full implementation.

That the Highways Advisory Committee notes that the estimated cost of implementation
of the proposals is £0.002m this will be met by the A26910 Scheme Budget

REPORT DETAIL

Background

Following approval by the Highways Advisory Committee with the support of Ward
Councillors, the third and final phase of the Gidea Park parking review was undertaken
between 24" November 2017 and 8" December 2018. The review area included the
eastern part of Carlton Road, the eastern part of Stanley Avenue, Stanley Close and
Woodfield Drive.

The results of this consultation showed a clear desire that the residents of Stanley Close
wanted the introduction of parking proposals but raised concerns on the time period
proposed as they felt these to be too restrictive.

Officers consulted Ward Councillors on a further consultation for the residents of Stanley
Close. It was proposed to introduce a new residents permit parking area ‘permit parking
past this point’ to maximise the available parking for residents. Officers consulted with
Ward Councillors on the operational times of the residents permit parking area and in July
2018 consulted on the following (alternative) times of operation :- a) Monday to Friday
8am -10am, b) Monday to Friday 8.30am -6.30pm and c) Monday to Saturday 8.30am -
6.30pm.

The informal consultation in Stanley Close, Romford started on the 15" June 2018 and
concluded on the 6™ July 2018. At the close of consultation officers received 12
representations in favour of a) Monday to Friday 8 — 10am restriction; 2 representations
in favour of a Monday to Friday 8.30am — 6.30pm restriction; and 3 representations in
favour of a Monday to Saturday 8.30am — 6.30pm.

Officers analysed the results of the informal consultation and it appeared that the majority
of residents of Stanley Close were in favour of a Monday to Friday 8.30am to 6.30pm
Permit Parking Area (PPA) restriction.

Page 18



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT — FEBRUARY 2022

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

In December 2019 the Highways Advisory Committee gave approval to formally consult
on a Permit Parking Area in Stanley Close Monday to Friday 8.30am to 6.30pm.

On the 28th May 2021 to 18" June 2021 a formal consultation took place, consulting on
a Permit Parking Area in Stanley Close Monday to Friday 8.30am to 6.30pm inclusive.

Outcome of the Formal
Consultation

46 addresses were sent consultation letters seeking their comments on the proposals.
A plan showing the proposals was enclosed with each letter.

6 responses were received representing 13% of all those consulted. These were all
objecting to the proposals to implement controls from Monday to Friday 8.30am to 6.30pm
inclusive but suggested alternative times with a lesser restriction.

One respondent suggested no waiting between 8.30am to 10.30am Monday to Friday as
they felt the proposed times would not be overly restrictive on visitor parking. Another
respondent from the same household suggested there should be no parking restrictions.

One respondent from Stanley Avenue objected as they have multiple cars and want to
have the opportunity to park in Stanley Close as it's not busy.

One respondent from Stanley Close feels it is unnecessary and the parking in the road is
mostly down to family and friends visiting.

A respondent of Stanley Close objects to the scheme Monday to Friday 8.30am to 6.30pm
and requests 8am to 10am Monday to Friday

A resident of Stanley Avenue objected unless they are able to have a permit for the
Stanley Close permit parking area.

Officers have considered the formal responses and in line with the concerns originally
raised about non-residential parking problems, recommend that HAC approves full
implementation of the reduced restriction times of Monday to Friday 8.00am to 10.00am
inclusive, for a Permit Parking Area in Stanley Close for residents of Stanley Close only,
based on feedback from ward members below.

2 Officer Comments

2.1

2.2

All three of the Romford Town Ward Councillors have been made aware of the outcome of
the formal proposals as set out in the recommendation and two Ward Councillors have
confirmed their support for the scheme to be reduced to 8am to 10am Monday to Friday
inclusive but with a view to review this in the future as people change their practice of going
back to commuting.

The level of responses to the consultation (13%) which is about the expected rate of
response for this type of proposal. Whilst the comments made by the respondents have
been given due consideration, the response to the consultation suggests the majority of
residents consulted have no concerns or issues with the proposed parking measures.

Page 19



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT — FEBRUARY 2022

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

This report is asking HAC to recommend to the Cabinet Member the implementation and accept
the recommendations made by officers of the above scheme

Should the proposals be implemented, Members should note that the estimated cost of
implementation is £0.002m, which will be met by the A26910 Scheme Budget

It should be noted that subject to the recommendations of the committee, a final decision would
then be made by the Lead Member — as regards actual implementation and scheme detail.
Therefore, final costs are subject to change.

This is a standard project for Public Realm and there is no expectation that the works cannot be
contained within the cost estimate. There is an element of contingency built into the financial
estimate. In the unlikely event of an overspend, the balance would need to be contained within
the overall Public Realm budget.

Legal implications and risks:

The Council's powers to make an order creating a controlled parking zone or for charging for
parking on the highway is set out in Part IV of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (“RTRA
1984”).

The Council’s power to make an order regulating or controlling vehicular traffic on roads is set
out in section 6 of Part 1 RTRA’1984. Schedule 1 of the RTRA 1984 lists those matters as to
which Orders can be made under section 6. The Traffic Signs Regulations and General
Directions 2016 govern road traffic signs and road markings.

Before an Order is made, the Council should ensure that the statutory procedures set out in the
Local Authorities Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England & Wales) Regulations 1996 (SI
1996/2489) are complied with.

Section 122 RTRA 1984 imposes a general duty on local authorities when exercising functions
under the RTRA. It provides, insofar as is material, to secure the expeditious, convenient and
safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of suitable
and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway. This statutory duty must be balanced
with any concerns received over the implementation of the proposals.

In considering any responses received during consultation, the Council must ensure that full
consideration of all representations is given including those which do not accord with the officer’s
recommendation. The Council must be satisfied that any objections to the proposals were taken
into account.

In considering any consultation responses, the Council must balance the concerns of any
objectors with the statutory duty under section 122 RTRA 1984.

Page 20



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT — FEBRUARY 2022

Human Resources
Implications and risks

The recommendations made in this report do not give rise to any identifiable HR risks or
implications that would affect either the Council or its workforce.

Equalities implications and risks:

Havering has a diverse community made up of many different groups and individuals. The
council values diversity and believes it essential to understand and include the different
contributions, perspectives and experience that people from different backgrounds bring.

The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires the
council, when exercising its functions, to have due regard to:

(1 the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010;

(i) the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share protected
characteristics and those who do not, and,;

(i)  foster good relations between those who have protected characteristics and those
who do not.

Note: ‘Protected characteristics’ are: age, sex, race, disability, sexual orientation, marriage and
civil partnerships, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity and gender reassignment.

The council demonstrates its commitment to the Equality Act in its decision-making processes,
the provision, procurement and commissioning of its services, and employment practices
concerning its workforce. In addition, the council is also committed to improving the quality of
life and wellbeing of all Havering residents in respect of socio-economics and health
determinants.

There will be some physical and visual impact from the required signing and lining works.

Page 21



RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

Appendix A- Plan

zzzzzz



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT — FEBRUARY 2022
Part C — Record of decision

| have made this executive decision in accordance with authority delegated to me by the Leader
of the Council and in compliance with the requirements of the Constitution.

Decision

Proposal agreed

Proposal NOT agreed because

Details of decision maker

Signed

Name: Councillor Osman Dervish

Cabinet Portfolio held: Cabinet Member for the Environment
CMT Member title:

Head of Service title

Other manager title:

Date:

Lodging this notice

The signed decision notice must be delivered to the proper officer, Debra Marlow, Principal
Democratic Services Officer in Democratic Services, in the Town Hall.

For use by Committee Administration

This notice was lodged with me on

Signed

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

8th February 2022

Subject Heading: Grass Verges Conversion —
Recommendation

CMT Lead: Councillor Osman Dervish
Report Author and contact details: Halina Baranowska

Project Manager
Schemes@havering.gov.uk

Policy context: Major Parking schemes

Financial Summary: The estimated cost is £0.630m which
has been allocated from the Highways
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
funding allocation cost code - C38010

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives

Communities making Havering X]
Places making Havering [X]
Opportunities making Havering X]
Connections making Havering [X]

Page 25


mailto:Schemes@havering.gov.uk

HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

SUMMARY

Following on from concerns raised by members, residents, waste, and emergency services in
relation to obstructive and erroneous parking caused by parking stress on residential streets
in the borough, this report outlines proposals to convert a limited number of existing grass
verges into parking space. The report outlines costs for the implementation. Whilst this report
is seeking approval to progress a limited number of grass verge conversion to parking space
indicative costs for a much larger scheme are also provided, along with options for future
consideration.

11

1.2

1.3

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Highways Advisory Committee having considered this report recommends to
the Cabinet Member for Environment in consultation with the Leader of the Council that:

a) officers reduce the scale of the project to progress with the informal consultation
with residents at four sites in Harold Wood Ward and one site in Hacton Ward
as part of a trial; as detailed in Appendices A and B.

b) if after undertaking informal consultations the majority of residents are in support,
the trial schemes progress to full implementation.

That the Highways Advisory Committee Members note the estimated cost of the trial
scheme implementations is £0.630m as detailed in Appendix B.

REPORT DETAIL

Background

Increased car ownership has resulted in the increased parking (kerb side) pressure,
and this has meant some drivers use of verges for vehicular parking, particularly in
residential areas. As such the council receives many requests to fund and implement
the protection or hardening of verges.

Parking on and vehicular damage to grass verges is a common problem. It can reduce
the verge to an unsightly state and obstruct the highway preventing pedestrians and
wheelchair users from accessing roads and footways. Verge parking can also cause a
hazard to other motorists especially if the vehicle is parked on a bend, narrow road, or
junction.

In principle it is possible to create additional parking space and capacity through the
conversion of selected green spaces and verges to hard standing. A study was
undertaken as part of the Highway Investment Programme (Whole Street Approach) to
identify locations experiencing parking and traffic manoeuvrability issues caused by
parking demand and narrow roapg@@eZ6



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

1.4

15

1.6

The service contacted all councillors and asked them for their views and to provide
details of areas where concerns have been raised by residents experiencing parking
pressure who were requesting grass verge conversion work. This information was
collated along with direct requests from residents, members, and waste services.

To prioritise the implementation of grass verges conversion the following criteria was
used:

a) The level of risk to highway users and whether there has been a
recommendation by any of the emergency services

b) If there is adequate alternative parking available nearby (either on or off street)
there must not be a worse problem caused by the displaced parking

c) Level of support from Local Residents and Ward Members

d) The actual cost of the proposed solution.

An analysis of the locations where requests were made was undertaken and a scoring
method was used to assist with this evaluation. The benefits to residents as well as
verified delays to refuse collection/access issues, public transport accessibility and the
overall cost of the scheme were awarded a score with O having the least and 100 having
the highest affect; and details of this are provided in Appendix A.

1.6.1 Impact on waste collection and access for emergency services.

I.  Narrow streets and residents double parking has impacted on the
emergency services' ability to access incidents and delays to refuge
services.

II.  The council’s waste collection and emergency services have been asked
to evaluate the sites.

a) The Metropolitan Police reported problems with accessing two
sites in the borough which were Newbury Gardens and Halesworth
Close due to the fact both roads are very narrow. However,
Newbury Gardens has not been raised with officers before now
and it is for this reason it isn’t on the current list of sites for grass
conversion. If approved officers will include this location in the next
batch of sites, for the future consideration.

b) Halesworth Close is in Harold Wood Ward and is one of the sites
on the grass conversion list which officers are recommending be
included within the trial area. To mitigate the problem officers are
proposing to extend the width of carriageway and to convert the
grass verge into residential parking.

1.6.2 Impact on residents:

I. Parking and damage to the grass verges and pavements is a common
problem in Havering and can have a big impact on people with sight
and mobility difficulties and for children in pushchairs. Further problems
include reducing verges to an unsightly state, obstructing the highway,
and preventing pedestrians and wheelchair users from accessing
roads.

Page 27



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

Officers looked at the number of parking spaces available, the number
of properties in each road and how providing more parking would
benefit residents.

The proposals will improve parking supply enabling further parking
areas for residents to park. Also, will help reduce vehicle traffic and
congestion in the borough, which will improve road safety and air
quality.

1.6.3 Cost per parking space

The implementation of this type of work can be costly and significant
sums of public money would be used to create a relatively modest
number of extra spaces.

With the recommended options, the cost to implement schemes in the
five proposed locations would be approximately £0.635m which would
create an additional 129 parking spaces and equates to a cost of £4,922
per space which would have a positive impact on parking provision in
these areas.

1.6.4 PTAL (Public Transport Access Level)

PTAL is a measure of connectivity by public transport, which has been
used in various planning processes in London for many years.

For any selected place, PTAL suggests how well the place is
connected to public transport services. It does not cover trips by car.

PTAL values are simple. They range from zero to six, where the
highest value represents the best connectivity. For historical reasons,
the PTAL value of one is split into two categories (1a and 1b) and the
PTAL value of six is split into two categories (6a and 6b).

All together there are nine possible values of PTAL: 0, 1a, 1b, 2, 3, 4,
5, 6a and 6b. A location will have a higher PTAL if:

a) Itis at a short walking distance to the nearest stations or stops.
b) Waiting times at the nearest stations or stops are short.

c) More services pass at the nearest stations or stops.

d) There are major rail stations nearby; or

e) Any combination of all the above.

1.6.5 Officers used the PTAL scoring method as part of the assessment works for
the grass conversion sites.

2 Proposed grass verges conversion update

2.1 Following on from the analysis and review of all 96 proposed sites in April 2020, 29
sites were identified as being s@agefcggossible grass conversion into parking bays



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

and all selected sites are shown in Appendix A. The reasons why sites were rejected
or deemed unsuitable was:

v" Not enough space for the verge conversion, substantial backfall away from the
channel line to construct parking bays

v Clearly visible underground utilities e.g., BT, CATV, sub-station for electric
cables — moving these will be very costly

v no parking problems in the area observed

The Local Members and Ward Councillors are in support of the introduction of
measures to address verge parking issues at the proposed locations. Designs for all 29
sites were completed as detailed in Appendix C and these were circulated with all
affected members for their comments in June 2021.

Site meetings has been undertaken in early July 2021 with positive comments from the
Councillors and the other locations were agreed to via internal correspondence on the
draft proposals

Following on from informal member approval to provide additional parking spaces, the
29 sites were sent to the contractor for statutory undertaker (stats) searches and
estimates. The overall costs estimate for the construction works is in excess of £2.5m
and a breakdown of this is shown in Appendix A.

Options

Conversion of grass verges to parking areas relieves parking stress in some areas
benefiting both residents and visitors. However, whilst increased parking space
provides some additional convenience to residents this needs to be balanced against
the detrimental impact this will have on encouraging car ownership, congestion, air
guality, climate change impact and increased paved areas adding to the flood risk in
the borough.

The implementation of this type of work can be costly and significant sums of public
money would be used to create a relatively modest number of extra spaces. The
following options are available:

3.2.1 Seek to provide additional parking at all 29 sites

3.2.2 The need for more parking has developed because of growth in motor traffic and
particularly in the ownership and use of private cars. The Council received 96
locations the subject of requests / complaints from residents and ward members,
and, after careful consideration, 29 sites were chosen for possible grass verge
conversion.

3.2.3 Progressing with the scheme would alleviate the pressure on parking and help
formalise current arrangements where erroneous parking is taking place. The
cost to implement schemes in all the proposed locations would be approximately
£2.5m which would create an additional 362 parking spaces and equates to a
cost of £6,906 per space which is a relatively modest additional capacity
compared to the investment. It would also attract the negative environmental
impacts mentioned above.

3.2.4 Reduce the scale of the project by undertaking a trial in an agreed area

Page 29




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

3.3.5 To monitor the impact of the proposals and reduce costs, undertaking a trial
where a small sample of locations have been requested is an option. It is
recommended the locations would be where the population is denser, and it is
likely residents would have limited access to both off street and on street parking
facilities. Consideration in terms of proximity to public transport is also a factor.

3.3.6 The cost to implement schemes in the five proposed locations would be
approximately £0.630m which would create an additional 129 parking spaces
and equates to a cost of £4,922 per space which would have a positive impact
on parking provision in these areas.

3.2.5 Retain existing parking arrangements and do not progress with the scheme

In line with the Mayors Transport Strategy (MTS) to promote sustainability using
alternative forms of travel to the private car, primarily using public transport,
walking, and cycling. Converting grass verges to parking can cause significant
loss of visual quality, access to green spaces and increase rainwater run-off,
which works against the need to combat climate change.

4 Recommendation
4.1 Based on the scoring method introduced to evaluate the sites and assign a priority
score based on criteria as highlighted in Appendix A, four sites in Harold Wood ward
and one site in Hacton ward scored the highest.
4.2  The recommendation is to adopt the:
a) option to reduce the scale of the project by undertaking a trial in Harold Wood
Ward and Hacton Wards and to progress with an informal consultation with

residents to establish a level of support; and

b) the scoring mechanism explained above to prioritise the sites as set out in
Appendix B, and as follows

Location Ward
BARNSLEY ROAD Harold Wood
KINGSBRIDGE CLOSE Harold Wood
KINGSBRIDGE CIRCUS Harold Wood
HALESWORTH CLOSE Harold Wood
HAYDOCK CLOSE, EPSOM WAY Hacton

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

This report is asking HAC to recommend to the Cabinet Member to accept the
recommendations made by officers and to proceed with the implementation process for the

above scheme. Page 30



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

Should all proposals be implemented, Members note that the estimated cost of implementation
is £0.630m

It should be noted that subject to the recommendations of the committee a final decision then
would be made by the Lead Member — as regards actual implementation and scheme detail.
Therefore, final costs are subject to change.

Legal implications and risks:

A TMO is not required for the civil works element for converting verges into hardstanding
areas. The proposed parking bays would be advisory bay markings; therefore, this element
would not require a TMO. However, we would require TMOs for proposed short lengths of
Double Yellow Lines at junctions in order to improve road safety and access.

The Council's power to make an order creating a controlled parking zone is set out in Part IV
of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (“RTRA 1984”). Before an Order is made, the Council
should ensure that the statutory procedures set out in the Local Authorities Traffic Orders
(Procedure) (England & Wales) Regulations 1996 (S| 1996/2489) are complied with.

The Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions 2016 govern road traffic signs and road
markings.

Section 122 RTRA 1984 imposes a general duty on local authorities when exercising functions
under the RTRA. It provides, insofar as is material, to secure the expeditious, convenient and
safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of
suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway. This statutory duty must be
balanced with any concerns received over the implementation of the proposals.

Human Resources implications and risks:

The proposal can be delivered within the standard resourcing within Street Management, and
has no specific impact on staffing/HR issues.

Equalities implications and risks:

Havering has a diverse community made up of many different groups and individuals. The
council values diversity and believes it essential to understand and include the different
contributions, perspectives and experience that people from different backgrounds bring.

The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires
the council, when exercising its functions, to have due regard to:

() the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010;

(i) the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share protected
characteristics and those who do not, and;

(i)  foster good relations between those who have protected characteristics and those
who do not.

Note: ‘Protected characteristics’ are: age, sex, race, disability, sexual orientation, marriage
and civil partnerships, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity and gender reassignment.

The council demonstrates its commitment to the Equality Act in its decision-making processes,
the provision, procurement and commisp'ig@@g Df its services, and employment practices



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

concerning its workforce. In addition, the council is also committed to improving the quality of
life and wellbeing of all Havering residents in respect of socio-economics and health

determinants.

BACKGROUND PAPER

NONE

Page 32



HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

APPENDICES

Appendix A — Grass verges conversion survey results and financial summary

Scoring

Proposed new Impact waste . AL (B PTAL (Public
Location Ward Area Existing spaces additional Total.number o Costing per parking space | collection/access Imp.act on (SRR NG | WEREEL: Acc‘ess Transport Access ctalecorel(nax

I paking spaces issues residents space LeveI)L;; IS"::ormg Level) - TiL 400)
AMERSHAM CLOSE Harold Wood 2 3 5 £56,915.85 £18,971.95 100 100 40 70 2 310
BROSELEY ROAD Gooshays 1 21 22 £118,620.14 £5,648.58 20 100 100 80 1b 300
DAGNAM PARK SQUARE Gooshays 0 12 12 £72,707.19 £6,058.93 100 60 80 70 2 310
DORKING RISE Gooshays 15 5 20 £83,125.20 £16,625.04 20 100 40 70 2 230
PRESTON ROAD (NORTH HILL GREEN) |Gooshays 8 14 22 £90,837.44 £6,488.39 20 100 80 70 2 270
PENRITH ROAD Gooshays 0 9 9 £83,366.56 £9,262.95 50 80 80 80 1b 290
PENZANCE GARDENS Gooshays 0 10 10 £89,594.59 £8,959.46 80 80 80 80 1b 320
PRIORY ROAD Gooshays 0 7 7 £91,366.95 £13,052.42 30 50 60 80 1b 220
SED\I DON GARDENS Gooshays 0 6 6 £74,107.62 £12,351.27 100 80 60 70 2 310
\ﬁTON ROAD Gooshays 0 11 11 £86,135.20 £7,830.47 20 100 80 80 1b 280
\mTON WAY Gooshays 0 9 9 £74,889.28 £8,321.03 20 100 80 70 2 270
EiA SLEY ROAD Harold Wood 0 9 9 £79,776.92 £8,864.10 80 100 80 70 2 330
ImgSBRIDGE CLOSE Harold Wood 2 6 8 £84,455.00 £14,075.83 100 100 60 70 2 330
ROBIN CLOSE Havering Park 32 32 64 £152,634.74 £4,769.84 30 60 100 80 1b 270
ST JOHNS ROAD Havering Park 0 19 19 £101,059.03 £5,318.90 20 50 100 80 1b 250
LODGE COURT St Andrews 28 11 39 £90,227.50 £8,202.50 80 60 80 50 4 270
THE GLEN ;7:;:?:;2:" 0 9 9 £103,734.82 £11,526.09 80 80 60 80 1b 300
KINGSBRIDGE CIRCUS Harold Wood 36 42 78 £162,151.21 £3,860.74 80 80 100 80 1b 340
HALESWORTH CLOSE Harold Wood 8 16 24 £146,125.95 £9,132.87 100 100 80 70 2 350
CEDAR CLOSE, ROMFORD Brooklands 4 9 13 £78,494.65 £8,721.63 80 80 80 60 3 300
CHAUCER ROAD Heaton 0 28 28 £113,046.98 £4,037.39 80 60 100 80 1b 320
GUILDFORD GARDENS Gooshays 4 7 11 £74,699.30 £10,671.33 100 60 60 80 1b 300
HORNDON CLOSE, ROMFORD Mawneys 0 6 6 £70,200.40 £11,700.07 100 80 60 70 2 310
NEWBURY GARDENS, RM3 Gooshays 0 11 11 £75,718.88 £6,883.53 70 80 80 70 2 300
PLOVER GARDENS Cranham 5 6 11 £80,870.45 £13,478.41 100 80 60 80 1b 320
RETFORD PATH Gooshays 0 7 7 £76,416.24 £10,916.61 80 90 60 80 1b 310
TRUSTONS GARDENS Hylands 0 5 5 £71,686.65 £14,337.33 20 50 60 80 1b 210
WOODBRIDGE CLOSE Gooshays 22 9 31 £85,847.59 £9,538.62 90 60 80 80 1b 310
HAYDOCK CLOSE, EPSOM WAY Hacton 0 32 32 £157,970.58 £4,936.58 70 90 100 80 1b 340

£2,726,782.91




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

Appendix B — Grass verges conversion financial summary of recommended locations

7€ obed

v A~ W N

Location Ward Area Total score (max 400) Costing
BARNSLEY ROAD Harold Wood 330 £79,776.92
KINGSBRIDGE CLOSE Harold Wood 330 £84,455.00
KINGSBRIDGE CIRCUS Harold Wood 340 £162,151.21
HALESWORTH CLOSE Harold Wood 350 £146,125.95
HAYDOCK CLOSE, EPSOM WAY Hacton 340 £157,970.58

£630,479.66




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

Appendix C — Proposed designs for all sites by Ward

1. Brooklands Ward

PURPOSE | PURPTSE
]9 S by oo s e sy
I o
/ NEW KERB B
LINE ~ _
LAMNP
SELUMN e FROPOSED DCGUBLE /‘:5‘ 4
RELOCATED YELLOW LIMNES » :
T TO THE _
A BACK !
w o
(@] ’f"‘
~ }\h (e
‘\—Il., 6\%
QR ..
<,
O,
S
PROFOSED
DOUBLE
TELLOW LINES
10.0 /
<Y
PR




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

2. Cranham Ward

PROPOSED
PARKING
BAY

ac afhr 4

MEW FERB LIME




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

3. Gooshays Ward

EXISTING IMSET
PARKING BAY

RIZABELED BAY TOD
BE RELCEATED
FROM CARRIAGEWA'YT

1 ahp 4

PROFPDSED
PRERKING
BAY

LINDFIELD ROAD

PROPOSED
DoUBELE
WELLSW
LNES

|
A
N

REVEIDN | ALFMIWFT

Y TILE
SRS VERDES COMVERSON

e Havering Siee
:;'I.E ME | ORaFT
1:250 | | IS5LE




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

<

Q
"\é
|

oc ahpr 4

X

&

N,

BaAY MARKINGS I[N THE MEW BaY AMD ahl

EMISTIMNG BAY

DATE




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

abhpr 4

<

2.4

A

EXISTIMG IWMSET
PERKING BAT

PROPZSER PARKING
BAY

BOLLARES

DATE




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

N PURPCSE [ PuRPESE
% N Miﬂqbﬂﬁ-“&h—*m
PROPOSED) = e P s L
BAT ol hiﬂm 1) e Dot
- [ B
&%ﬁ: o el el b
|BTHIa
COLUNA T3 BE WAES
RELOCATED TO
BACK aF THE
FOOTWAY
14,8
PROPOSED POUBLE
VELLOAY LINES EN FOOTRA
g8 2.3

FEVEIIN | AMEHDWENT DATE

‘i/ -

N
2
:




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

$

FARKI NG
BAY

] [

7+ afrd

LY 4

PROPOSED DOUBLE
TELLDW LINES




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

c+ ahpr 4

<
2
©
b
2
=
Z
m

YELLOW LIME

.
e
v
EXISTING DOUBLE .

o

PROPOSET]
DOUBLE

YELLOW
LINE




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

l....._____‘I N - PURPCSE | PURPRSE
M g b Bty EaHors & Cormmally Tl &
:".tl.....-..,.._..,....._‘#:',!.
] Dl k- ol e Conlnder o
&%ﬁ::bﬂﬁ;—*-ﬂ;ﬂ—
WNES
Q)
Q]
FENGIDN | AMEWDHENT DATE
e ME
D% VERES GOMVERRN
FROFPOSED
POUBLE
VELLOW LINES R TIE
VRN LR
HISEHTE
DJLTURE & COMMLNTT
T & BT
- v
i, e
ML b ETER 4R
et
121
APPRRVER BY
| Ry
[
AT e FEMEETS
o B L]




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

PURPCSE [ PURPESE
N ST TS e B
AR R Ay s ke
BROSELE—Y GARDENS &% ol g bl s i
]
o)
xie
NEW KERE LINE <
|
1 ' 05
A
". 19974 «C
| 52
! B
2 ; BOLLARDS
[
! i
-:t-—ns ?)/[ 1
I .
Y, |
[
@ T 7 Vo /] SRR
@ I TO THE BACK . B
L *{/ OF THE FOOTWRY . A
R |
U (~ 3ime - % .
(m] | v EXISTING DOUBLE
A <L i . - YELLEWF UINE TD BE
[e)] i v SHORTEM T2 5m
o i \I—MI o £hl WINTON ROAD
= ~J! 5
2 I
2 | iEee
¥
VELLOW LINES f
7 |l o
¥ N\
I < ~ @D
] f FEVEIN | AUEWTMENT PRITE
; o A
’ 9
i
f' 11 s
/ §
—_— \
BROSELEY Roap




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

ey,
1

at afprd
JV 7 )

' TREE 76 REMAIN

PROPOSED
PARKING BAY

/ 1

1.

PROFOSED DOUBLE
WEL LS LIMES

1

a

FEVEIIM | ALEWINENT DHTE




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

HEW KERE LhWE

)+ 0P

Vv

e

4

o
MEW KERB LIME

E
o
N

»

PROPDSED
PARKING Bﬁ‘r’

v
PROPOSED f ~
PARKING BaT '

' “TEMIIDN TO
o) THE EEXISTIMG BaYyY
‘-;
% a

oS

BOLLARDS

Vs

DATE




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

25

@ %}:\%—V PURFCEE [rurPosE
. TR
@.&5“ v o L e T
ol L] -5 ol i Coutnder of
B R e e e
MNES
-~
=
a1 A
FROFDSED
PARKING
CERRIAGEWNSY Eih
EXISTING 2%
TREE
EMSTING LAMP
el Wi T8 BE [ 2 Gl
RELOGATED
i “ _
Q 1%
G s 5
ERISTING, GOUBLE
a TREE] ;\'3 YELIIJ?I.E (
5 HEW WERH Eﬁ%
O LINE O
EXISTIMNG DOUBLE & 0}?‘
YELLDW LINE TO BE EXISTING LAMP ?:.{ /
EHORTEW TD 7m (O LMW TO BE \} LI’
RELOCATED eN%
A =~
HEW 2.5 <
FODOTWAY
N
el w
2 : A
% 0
AL FEVEIN | AEWIRET HIE
‘? &P ME
O VERDET GOMVERO
Q‘? %1
(@)




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

T PURFOSE [ PURPESE
€L , -—5,‘ i o B
R e E
EXISTING DOUBLE (5

YELLOW LIMNE

MEW FOCTWAY

T v D%

qQl 1.

< 2.5 19
PROPOSED

£> PARKING BAY

EXISTIMG LAMP
COLUMM TO BE
RELOCATED TQ THE
BACK. OF THE
FOOTWAY

h i




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

gl

PROPGSED
FARKING BAY

PROPOSED DCUBLE
SYELLOW LINE

PROPOSED
PARKING BAY
7

ol

35

PURPCSE | PURPHISE
N [} e Blenlory CaHarn & Tl &
[y e Ll ARl o B
ol DOl ke ol i Dol o
f‘h 3 uﬁ. o g e e premreies wr sl b
. T

DATE




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

4. Hacton Ward

\

94 o 104
L1

oj/\:?%z

11810 128
—

PROPISED
PARK MG BMt

-

ESOSTIE CGUBLE
SELLDW UMES

FEVEIOM | ALFMIMENT DHTE

MEW FOOTWAY PROPOSED B e
PARKING BAY r

EKISTING LAMP

:
3
62

142

TCad e
Cad—a

AN WAY




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

5. Harold Wood Ward

FURPCSE | PURPESE
N [ lnbrags b Blrendors ExHors & Cormnady. Tofls &
B b o i bkt bty
|| Db LR ol i Evnlnder of
= B e e .
&&- ol =H-ﬁ remredes - sl pre—t.
ES
PROPOSED DOUBLE YELLOW
LINES
PROPOSED
FARKING
BAY 3
T
DAMAGE TD BRASS VERGE
TO BE REFAIRED &hD
WODOEW BOLLARDS
INSTALLED EVERY 1.2m
@
EXISTING DRIVE o
E¥ISTIMNG DRIVE
EXISTING DRIVE
FEVEIDN | AUEHIMENT ATE
M TE
v COMERH
OPYAS0 TITLE
REPEHE 6
HYLD G
SIREETCHE
CUUUPE & COMMLINTT
- B P I
e HAVerng ss=s s
. Leozeu ammzaan B e BT T
-1 ahin i g g
OF¥aA BT CHEDHE 87 HPPREVED BY
;]
STHE MTE | DR T
123 w2 | 550
KDL PEF! [ o
Shest Gom X7 & mi




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

oG afrd

v/ o

.Sub Sta

PURPOSE [ PuRPHISE
TP PRHT
D iy b o oty St e TR R yty
[y - b g
ol O LR ol T Conlpllor
&q dzbdﬁp-ﬁ--ﬂ
WAES
FEVEIIN | AW MENT BATE
e TILE
B¥EE VERDEY eOWER
R0 TIME
BADELEY E
HPAD W00h

CMLTURE & CIMVLINTT
) v - I R
vt HAVETING S e
1 P E 1 ‘-;-hﬂ'ﬂn




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

+C 2o 1
V: vu‘u

o

SR

S % T\
‘..‘t
B

PROPOSEDR
DOUBLE “ELLOW
LINE

RURFOSE [ PuRPESE

SCTFIPRMHT
el I T L

[T ey ™ W o bt
Eﬂﬁ%zuﬁm-—h

AEMIMENT DHIE

% Haverind <&z

CHEDHI 87 APROER B
L]
STHE ME M| e T
126 /2 | 55LE

Kb PR

es 5= 41 Ganom] L]




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

SrET . RIRPCEE | PURPESE
A P c‘,e: N TR
o) © X e e b s P
L
— RS 7 e
N
- 49310 NV QENA =
— 6111 12 @’b %o‘. ; o
. 9. [ S W
- © P Talgarth House P ANY
. T .
Oy ,-\fb' . 5 hal c 1,
: = outha DGE Cy G,
- BRI R G
iy
@ o, g
@O ‘-Q‘:J
(2] \w]
= (]
(., -
U 2 fE \ Y
Q 8§ “
(@)
a Sopd 5 2 .
(@2
(@]
3
T 5 PRAOPOSED
PaRKING
) .5 Ay
¥ \ N o
- oy
. A .
Pulborough : Hayant House
House = / FROPCSED)
Y [=] nm_E—wﬁY
FREVEIR | AEWINENT DATE
Orton g C L —
House : —
'C'Jﬁ_ m.umm
- Lo : Veid i S
ﬂ‘:a . OP¥aU BT mmu ar
L]
STHE IME [ 1Tl
o o e |




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

ac ahvr 4
—

BAY MARKINGS
I THE EXISTING
PARKEING BAY
EVERY 2 d4m







HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

ation)

PEOFDZED
FARKIMNG BA'Y

PREPOSED DOLBLE
YELLOW LINE|

PROPDSED
PARKING BAY
L

ac abhp 1

e A WA W E .
] I

EXISTING LAMP
COLLIMM
TO PEMAIN

YELLOW LINE

A




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

7. Heaton Ward

Q‘.\ U(_JJJ FURPCSE [ PURPESE

g N e L TS
?’O \_‘if s, Eﬁ"ﬁ'&ﬁ%‘:‘&'
=P EXISTING DOUBLE
O YELLOW LIME TO ff
Cx, BE EXTEMNDED
¢,
&
Ph
Q
“o
COLUMM
10 BE
| GCATED 73
8.4
U
Q
«
(q)] BOLLARDS
a
(0]
2
-
o \n
2 OP
R ®
crpUC
- ==
\ SN —
d - ‘\\, =
AT s . -
x PROFDSED : P
LAMP COLUMHN Bav
x T3 BE D
RELGCATED \ = |
T 3 '




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

9. Hylands Ward

PROPOSED
PARKING
BAY

Y

09 abed

<, G
‘ . PEOPOSED L] T A—
FARKING R VR ComERR

BaY g T

EXISTING DOUBLE
YELLOW LINME

L\




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

10.Mawneys Ward

PURPOSE [ PURPESE
(1] e BranlCory Cabors & Corsnaly. Tofls &
T e L T,

e %’;&?ﬁﬂ“ e

ol
e bl e prmenles v ol
PAES




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

11.Rainham & Wennington Ward

ydoW=1a12J0|
29.9hp




HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 8" February 2022

12.St. Andrews Ward

[ 197 to 201

EXISTING SINGLE
TELLOW LIMNE TO
BE COMWERTED|

INTO DOUEBLE

ca ahpr 4
JI’

cg,

EXISTING PARKIM
Bay TO REMAL

PROPOSED
PARKING

1 [

FROFOSED

L -
PARKING
Ba ALEWIMENT TTE
L A,
15 NEW KERE -‘
™ /—DLlNE z
Gc

E_.T w
R WE
CA'EE VEFLFY COMVERN
. DR TITLE
ity
SIREERSFE
—[PRGPDSED 7 SRS
COoOUBLE - 3 M it g
YELLOW
LINE /
Car Park




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	Minutes

	5 ST HELENS COURT PARKING AND HOUSING ENFORCEMENT SCHEME OBJECTIONS
	6 STANLEY CLOSE, ROMFORD -   PERMIT PARKING MEASURES IMPLEMENTATION REQUEST
	7 GRASS VERGES - RECOMMENDATIONS

